
Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

1 
 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:35 p.m. on 
Tuesday, March 14, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier, Elaine Powell,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 

 
Absent:  None 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Commission Cotham was absent until noted in the minutes. 
 
23-0147  WOMEN'S ADVISORY BOARD FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET PRIORITIES 
 
 
The Board received budget priorities for Fiscal Year 2024 from the Women's Advisory Board. 
  
Jamilah Espinosa, Advisory Board Chair, made the presentation. 
  
Background: he Women’s Advisory Board (WAB) seeks to identify periodically the status of 
women in Mecklenburg County; to recommend ways to work toward the betterment of the 
status of women in education, employment, family, community, health, law, finance, and social 
services; to work collaboratively with other organizations; and to provide community leadership 
opportunities by initiating and promoting programs designed to serve the needs of women. 
  
Jamilah Espinosa currently serves as the Advisory Board Chair. The members and leadership of 
the WAB are appreciative of the support and encouragement received from the Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

2 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

3 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

4 
 

 
 
Commissioner Cotham joined the meeting at 2:48 p.m. 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

5 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

6 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

7 
 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Meier said she like the term “accessible housing.”  She asked who provided 
maternal care in the Mecklenburg County Jail.  County Manager Diorio explained that Wellpath 
was the provider. She said they would have to speak with the sheriff regarding concerns with 
better maternal healthcare.  Ms. Espinosa added that it is important to connect women to 
maternal healthcare when they are released from the Jail. 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked the presenter.  Commissioner Leake said she tried to work with 
Johnson C. Smith University, meeting with them for two hoping to come up with some means of 
providing more support for social workers.  She said she was waiting to see if the new president 
would work with the County in providing support. 
 
Commissioner Altman commented on sexual violence against women and girls and the suicide 
epidemic effecting boys.  She thanked the speakers for their work in bringing the issues into light. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked regarding pre-term birth if they tagged young ladies when they were 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

8 
 

initially pregnant and had an interaction with health services and if they kept up with them 
through the first 37 weeks.  County Manager Diorio explained that they did eligibility check, but 
they didn’t tag and follow them.   
County Manager Trotman said they would go into the standard plans and there were care 
management people who would coordinate their care.  He said there were a few programs in 
Public Health that they had access to as well.  He said once the eligibility specialist determined 
their eligibility, they would choose a managed care plan.   
 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there were people in the community the County could partner 
with.  is there someone we could partner with.  Ms. Espinosa said the County supported the 
Family Nurse Partnership through CareRing.  She said they would sign up themselves and would 
have visits by nurses.  She said DSS hands out pamphlets and advertised the programs. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said we should be reaching out and educating pre-term births as well as 
infant mortality.  County Manager Diorio said they were starting their Prenatal to 3 initiatives.   
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell highlighted slides 9 and 11.  She said the average age of 
victims was when they were in the 8th grade, which was a critical year.  She said CMS did a lot but 
really needed the County’s support.  She said those resources for mental health was needed in 
the schools to reach more children.   
 
Commissioner Powell talked about human trafficking and asked, as part of the education and 
prevention request, if there were any requests for education on how one would recognize human 
trafficking. Ms. Espinosa said they were usually already identified by CMPD through interviews.  
She said that not every case went through CMPD.  She said the budget request did not include 
identification because victims are usually first encountered by police or healthcare professionals. 
Instead, the budget request included funding for organizations that educate the community about 
identifying instances of human trafficking. 
 
Commissioner Powell asked that they make a more specific request regarding funding. 
 
Jerrell underscored the importance of conversation.  He said regarding the complexity, he was 
not convinced that government alone could solve the problem.  He said the business community 
had an important role that they could play.  He asked if anybody was working on a comprehensive 
strategy that would bring all the key stakeholders together with government to address the 
issues. Ms. Espinosa explained that there are various task forces addressing the issues 
individually. 
 
Chair Dunlap said there were multiple recommendations and asked County Manager Diorio to 
provide a follow up on what she found and whether the staff were following up on the 
recommendations outlined in the presentations and what they were doing to address the issues. 
 
23-0150          DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ADVISORY BOARD FISCAL YEAR 2024 BUDGET PRIORITIES 
 
The Board received budget priorities for Fiscal Year 2024 from the Domestic Violence Advisory 
Board. 
  
Background: The Domestic Violence Advisory Board (DVAB) is the official citizen advisory 
commission on domestic violence issues. The members are appointed by and report to the Board 
of County Commissioners and Charlotte City Council. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

9 
 

The Board periodically reviews and evaluates all Charlotte and Mecklenburg County domestic 
violence services, makes appropriate recommendations to Charlotte City Council and the Board 
of County Commissioners to identify gaps, or need for additional services to meet the needs of 
victims of domestic violence and their children; and, provides vigorous advocacy for domestic 
violence awareness and its related costs to victims and the community. 

The DVAB receives staff support from the Mecklenburg County Community Support Services 
Prevention and Intervention Services. Tya Patterson-Powe currently serves as the Advisory Board 
Chair. 

Racquel Ward, Domestic Violence Advisory Board Secretary, gave the presentation. 

 
 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

10 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

11 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

12 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

13 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

14 
 

Comments 
 
Commissioner Griffin said it was an extraordinarily challenging work and thanked the DVAB.  
 
Commissioner Leake thanked the presenters and made comments regarding domestic violence.  
She said physical mistreatment is not talked about in certain settings, for example, the faith 
community.  She commended the County and the Board regarding the wrap-around services. 
  
Commissioner Meier said she serves as the liaison for the DVAB.  She said the offenders thrived 
in silence of the victim.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked Ms. Ward if there was any assistance for people who needed to 
obtain a 50c restraining order from a person with whom they did not have a relationship.   
 
 
Commissioner Cotham said the State took mental health away from the County in 2019. She 
asked if they ever send recommendations to legislators on issues where they had primary 
responsibility. Ms. Ward said someone who was on the Board was appointed to the state level 
related to domestic violence, so they felt they had an advocate at that level. 
 
Director Lowry said work that is done by the DVAB was focused solely on intimate partner 
relationships. 
 
 
23-0168  AGE FRIENDLY MECKLENBURG PLAN UPDATE 
 
 
The Board received as information a presentation on the Age-Friendly Mecklenburg Plan. 
  
Greg Tanner, Adult Services Division Director, and Kristine Arnau, Social Services Program 
Director gave the presentation. 
                                               
Background: Age-Friendly Mecklenburg is an initiative that facilitates the collective planning of 
not-for-profit, higher education, faith-based, private, and governmental organizations along 
with community residents to improve the quality of life for older adults.  Having such a 
collaborative effort is vital, since by the year 2035, an additional 140,000 residents aged 55 and 
older will be living in Mecklenburg County, of which 100,000 will be aged 65 and older. This is by 
far the fastest growing age group in the County; in fact, 45% of the total population growth 
between now and 2035 will come from growth in those aged 55+. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

15 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

16 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

17 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

18 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

19 
 

Comments 
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said her number one complaint from citizens was about 
transportation. She said she wanted to hear more about the awareness for the LGBTQ 
community in their later years as they suffer from depression, suicide due to hate, and being 
unaccepted in nursing homes, and no partner benefits.     
 
Mr. Tanner said they were currently in the midst of working with a consultant doing a 
comprehensive 360 study of the entire transportation operation.  He said some 
recommendations have come back.  He said one of the things that did come out was a need to 
hold vendors more accountable.  He said they did have a policy in place to address those issues.  
He said during the pandemic, various vendors did lose some drivers who went to other 
employment due to hire wages.  He said they were trying to get some of those positions filled, 
in the meantime they wanted to make sure they provided on-time, most appropriate 
transportation service. He said they were also putting out a bid for new vendors.  He said they 
needed large companies that could hold the volume, as they were averaging about 1400 trips 
per day. 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked them for their report.  She spoke about working with seniors to 
provide training for the use of electronics.  Mr. Tanner said that the County is working with the 
Fill My Cup organization at VCW on digital technology education for seniors.  He said it was a 4–
6-week program.  He said they were looking for additional seniors to come in.  He said the 
program was funded through AARP. 
 
Ms. Arnau said regarding the aging community of the LGBTQ+, they had an open conversation 
to better understand what they could do to increase their inclusivity.  She said they also met 
with SAGE USA, which is a national resource, that provided resources specific to the aging 
community.  She said they hosted a webinar with the NC Social Security Admin Office this past 
November to overview same sex benefits.   
 
Commissioner Cotham said there are senior groups of LGBTQ+ men she suggested they could 
possibly seek speakers among them. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked if there was a volunteer coordinator who would come up with a 
program where volunteers would make weekly calls or send birthday cards.  Ms. Arnau said 
they had nothing in place as of now but were looking to cater to those needs. She said they 
promote volunteer opportunities although they haven’t identified anything specific yet.  She 
said they were thinking innovatively about how it could be done. She said they were also calling 
on other best practices with other counties to find out what is being done and could be used 
here. 
 
Commissioner Cotham said if there were any surveys she would like to be included. 
 
Commissioner Powell said in the past three months, she had received several questions and 
concerns from seniors.  She talked about how important parks and recreation are to seniors.  
She asked if they thought about partnering beyond UNCC.  She said they were having a hard 
time finding instructors for senior exercise programs.  Director Tanner said they have had a 
hard time finding locations.  He said they were also trying to identify who the new partners 
would be who were not at the table yet.  He said they were open to those opportunities. 
 
Commissioner Powell asked them to encourage people to be on the long-term care advisory 
boards as there was such a need in this region. 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

20 
 

23-0173  COVID-19 RECOVERY AND RENEWAL TASK FORCE UPDATE 
 
The Board received updates on the recovery and renewal task force implementation plan for 
recommendations. 
  
Monica R. Allen, PhD, Director for Strategic Planning & Evaluation, made the presentation. 
  
Background: In October 2020, the Mecklenburg Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) 
appointed the COVID-19 Recovery and Renewal Task Force to identify recommendations on the 
County's response to the pandemic. Over approximately a year, the Task Force developed 
recommendations that included three focus areas - Health, Economy, and Community - 
supported by 13 strategies and 60 actions. In September 2021, the BOCC approved the Task 
Force recommendations. Subsequent direction by the BOCC included accountability for the 
County Manager to determine a process for implementing and tracking progress on the actions. 
The presentation highlights current and recent work for the Health focus area. The Economy and 
Community focus areas were presented to the BOCC on February 15. 
 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

21 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

22 
 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

23 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

24 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

25 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

26 
 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

27 
 

 
 
Commissioner Altman left the meeting at 4:37 p.m. and returned when noted in the minutes. 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

28 
 

 
 
 
Commissioner Altman returned to the meeting at 4:41 p.m. 
Commissioner Meier Left the meeting at 4:41 p.m. and returned when noted in the minutes. 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

29 
 

 

 
 
Commissioner Cotham  



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

30 
 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Leake thanked Dr. Allen and staff for their hard work.  She asked how the 
information would be disseminated to the general public.  Dr. Allen said County Manager Diorio 
asked her to reach out to the task force to get the information to them.  County Manager Diorio 
said they appropriated $500,000 to do marketing for all the ARPA investments to let people know 
about them and where they needed to go to access the various services.   
 
Commissioner Meier asked if they communicated with task force about progress.  County 
Manager Diorio said yes and explained the communication process. 
 
 
23-0163  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but was not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 14, 2023 
 

31 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Leake, seconded by Commissioner Meier, and unanimously 
carried to adjourn the meeting.    
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:51 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chair 
 
 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


